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MR. ISADORE HABER: I appear here for Mr.

3 Stoebling personally, and as his personal attorney.
F MR. PALESE: What is your name?

1 MR. HABER: Judge Haber of Union City.

He was served with a subpoena by this Committee‘

to produce the records of his department here this
morning, and I understand that attorneys for the
bureau or department had told the Committee that the !
‘books would be brought here. Late last night the j
Commissioner was very much distressed at the news ;
reports of his position. He had read the articles !

appearing in the press, charging him with some serious

things about the records of his department, and he ,
consulted with me, and I told him that the subpoena \
has to be obeyed. . : l
He says that he wants to obey the subpoena, f
-and the subpoena calle on him to produce these recordst
and to appear to testify. He is in no position to
appear personally, and I think the Committee can be
well satisfied on that if they would personally visit

Mr. Stoebling. That is an invitation that the CommittLo |

has, at any time today, to visit Mr. Stoebling at his

home, and you will find that he has suffered very

bad effects. He is in no position to leave in order |

J

to testify so he cannot obey the mandate of your




.

charge of these books. I do not think that the iaw

subpoena.

He cannot and does not want to leave the books
out of his possession. | He would like to come here
himself or be examined at his home or at his office,
as soon as your doctor will examine him and say when
he can appear, so that he can produce the books and
make a statement to you or be examined by you. The
books are under his control, under the statute, and I
am sorry to say that I do not believe there is anythiné

in the Election Law which permits a deputy to take

provides for a deputy in his department. I do not
think that the law gives him the right to have a
deputy in his department. If he had a deputy, the
deputy would step into his shoes and produce the
bocks. You understand that the records are all under
lock and key in a vault. They are being guarded.

If you will have a doctor examine him this
afternoon and the doctor says that he can be examined
today or moved today he will be moved today, whether
it be across to his own office or whether it be here
to the Court House. If the doctor says he can be
moved on Monday, he just as well would come over here,
I am sure. If the doctor says he can be moved on

Tuesday then he could come Tuesday, but it is his
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right to appear here before you and make a statement
to you, when he produces the books.

That is about all I can say.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Judge, let me say this: in |
the first place you must realize that we do not
desire to examine Mr. Stoebling personally. If at

some later date he desires to appear before us and

make a statement we will be very glad to have him |
come, ,

In the second place, he is subpoenaed as a
public official and not as a private citizen and, as |
such, I do not see that he has a right to personal
counsel.

MR. HABER: I am not really-- as I said before,
I happen to be his personal counsel, and whether I

am here as his personal counsel or in his place, I

don't knoi that there 1s very much difference, but
this subpoena, as you realize, 1s a subpoena upon him |
personally to appear, "We command and summon you to
personally be and appear before this Committee and
bring with you all poll books."

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Now, you say that he cannot
appear by deputy with the poll books. Then how can he

appear by attorney without the poll books?
MR. HABER: Well, I am only appearing here for
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him, to speak for him. You don't have to say that I

am appearing ai an attorney or as his attorney. I am l
appearing as his friend. What I am trying to tell you,
Mr. Chairman, 1s this: first,permit me to read this |

letter from him to you. (

"Honorable Henry Young, Jr.
Newark, N. J.

"Dear 8ir:

"I have this day been served with a
subpoena, commanding‘me to produce before you
forthwith the records of my office in

~connection with the Election of November 24,
1937.

"I am charged with the sole responsibility
for the safeguarding 6f these'recordsyand have
no authority to permit them to come into the
possession or control of any other person.

"At present I am confined to my home by
‘111ness and under the orders of my physiciah

am unable to leave my house. As soon as I am

physically able to comply with this subpoena,
I shall personally appear with the records of
my office which you require. Until that time,
however, I am unable to comply with your
subpoena.

"I am sure you realize my position.




"Respectfully,
"(signed) Charles F. Stoebling."
I want you to believe, as Charlie impressed me,

that he is sincere in this. There is no effort to

evade., He 1is under subpoena, and at the same time,
under the duties imposed upon him by the Election Laws;-
the Election Laws do not provide for a deputy. He is |
responsible for those books. He wants to give you
those books but he wants to be here. You know,
at least, I believe you know, that the man is 11l
and confined to bed.

Now, you have an invitation, either the
Commitfee or one or more of this Committee, or your

physician, to attend today, within the hour, or this

afternoon, to examine him and talk to him. If you

£ind that he can be moved he will be moved today to

Y

|
a place that you designate, and the books will be therr
at the same time. He will make a statement to you I
when he produces these books. I think that 1is his
privilege. In other words, this request is sincere.
The records at the present time are under lock and
key. They are under a watchman's guard. You can
Place additional guards there i1f you desire.

It is not a case where a man was well before

he got the subpoena and became sick after he got the




subpoena. It is a matter of record that he is not
well, so whether you examine the man this afternoon
or Monday or Monday afternoon, whenever your physician
or you are satisfied that the man can be moved, then
he will be moved.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Judge, I don't want to carry
the argument too long. It seems that the request 1is
a quibble, to be truthful with you. He says that he
cannot deliver these books to the Committée by agent
‘because he 1s in custody of those books under the law,
yet on every Election Day and every primary day, |
on every General Election Day and on every special
Election Day, Mr, Stoebling delivers those books to
people who are not his people, who are, under the
law, the agents of the law.

MR. HABER: You mean the Election Boards?

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: = Yes.

MR. HABER: The Act provides for that.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: He is not in possession of
those books. They are taken from his possession.
He has not theﬁ in his custody during the times that
they are out with the other Election Boards and at
other times prior to the election.

MR. HABER: That 1s the Act which provides that

the records are to be distributed or given to the




Election Boards, and so on.
‘CHAIRMAN YOUNG: We are asking for the
signature copy--
- MR. HABER: These are the originals.

GHAIRMAN YOUNG: Duplicates to the ones sent

"out to the Election Boards.

MR. MAX MILLER (of the Hudson County Board
of ﬁlections): Those records have been availabie
before to Mr. Freeman, when they came and asked for

them, but when the poll books are returned by the

Election Boards, after these names have been added,
after the person has voted, they are then placed in
the custody of the Commissioner of Registration,
who shall check with his binder and forms, and not i
having had an opportunity really to check at any time,
ve immediately, after checking, return them to all

the municipal clerks in the various towns and cities ’
in the county, so fhey are not the property of the |
Commissioner of Registration. They are placed in
custody only for him to check and then return to the
municipal clerks. That 1is all.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: In effect, they are not his

property at all?
MR. MILLER: They are not his property. They |

are placed in his particular custody and charge for
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checking with the binder and forms in order that we
may ascertain who of the registered voters have voted,
and immediately after checking we return them, at
least one month before the next election, to various
municipal clerks in the tévns and cities of the county
After they are through checking they have to be re-
turned to the municipal clerks. They are not the
property of the Commissioner of Registration. When
they are returned to the various municipal clerks

then it 1s their property, and they should be the ones
vho should be subpoenaed.

MR. OSMERS: May I ask a question? I am very
much confused here because Judge Haber has just made
a statement that these books are the property of the
Commissioner of Registration, and this gentleman has
sald that they are not. I wonder if they would be
willing to confer and make a decision.

- MR. HABER: I bow to Mr. Miller's knowledge
of that section of the Act.

MR. MILLER: The poll books are delivered to
the Commissioner of Registration.

Mﬁ. OSMERS: Mr. Chairman, I think we are
wvasting time i1f people are going to come here and say
one thing and then have some man contradict him. In

the meantime, this Committee is not going to get very

far.
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s |

MR. HABER: My request is just as I have 1
] |

pointed out to you before. I think you will agree with
me that the application is sincere. The man is 111l.
A man, after all, being required to produce the books,
should be heard. He 1s entitled to be heard when ‘
he.produces the books. He is willing to produce the
books. The books are not in jeopardy. The records
are not in jeopardy. They are under your guard as

well as his guard. You have the privilege to examine

them. You can examine him yourselves or by a physiciar

1=

at any time that you or a physiclan decide that he |

shall be examined and the books produced, and he will |
be examined and produce the books then, if he has to i
come on a stretcher.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I am not questioning about 1
Mr. Stoebling being ill. I have known that for weeks.
I do say this, when he returns the books to the ‘
municipalities he does not retufn them personally,
but by deputy or agent or someone else, and there is
no reason wvhy he cannot produce them here by deputy
or agent or whatever agency he chooses.,

We are calling on you for these books this
morning. We don't éare about Mr. 8toebling being here
We will be very glad to examine him later when his

health is such that he can be examined. There 1s no

o . JRme



necessity for Mr. Stoebling to personally produce_
the books.
MR. PALESE: Do I understand that he now has
possession of the books?
' MRS. SANFORD: Are they out of his vault?
MR. HABER: No, they are in the veult, being
‘duly guarded, under lock and key, and I think they

are your guards as well as his own.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: The Committee cannot wait

on Mr. Stoebling's healthto start its activities. »

There is no necessity for him being here. 1In the
ordinary course of events, in his office, when he
finally gets through with them, he would nof personall

hand out thirteen hundred books over the county.

J

It has to be done bf agents when it 1s done, and the
same conditions apply here. If Mr. Stoebling desires
to direct that the books be brought over here this
morning we will wait for them.

MR. PALESE: As I understand it, the books are
now in his possession, and fhey are physically under
his auﬁervision?

MR. HABER: I have not seen them myself, but
I am so informed.

MR. PALESE: Did he say to you that they are

in his possession or supervision at the present time?

MR.- HABER: I have not talked to him, whether i
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they are or not, but I am given to understand they
they are in the vault under lock and key.

MR. PALESE: Under his supgrvision and charge?

MR. HABER: Under his supervision and charge
but under the actual supervision of the guards.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: If they are brought over here
they will be under the actual supervision of the guardL.

MR. HABER: And this Committee.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: And this Committee., I think
that is all I can say, Judge. We will wait for them.

MR. HABER: All I can do is to relay your
message.

MR. PALESE: Have you advised him that because
of the fact that the Act did not permit the delivery
of those books by deputy that he should not have the
books here this morning?

MR. HABER: No, I did not advise him not to
have the books here. He told me that was his desire,
not to have the books here because he wants to make
this statement, that he has charge of the books and
that he has no deputy, and I am appearing here to
express his views to you.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: The books will speak for them-
selves. Anything he wants to do in relation to the

books, after we have them, it is perfectly simple.
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MR. PALESE: Judge, you are making the ‘
.argument that under the Election Laws he is the only |
person who can bring the books here? 1Is that your i
argument or his argument?

MR. HABER: Well, we discussed it and I
know of no provision under the Election Laws that
would indicate that a deputy could act for him,

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: You know of no provision

of the Election Laws stating that he is to personally

deliver each one of those books to each municipality

when he gets through with them? :
MRS. SANFORD: And the éame people who deliver

them to the different districts ought to be able to

bring them over here.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Suppose we recess to eleven
o'clock, and Judge Haber--

MR. GIULIANO: May I ask if Mr. Stoebling
is not even able to get up so that we can get the
books? After all, this Committee served him with a
subpoena and I am not asking Mr. 8toebling to appear.
We want the books. If Mr. Stoebling is not well that
means we are never going to receive these books.

MR. HABER: That would be an anomaly. You are
entitled to the books.

MR. GIULIANO: Why aren't they here this {
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morning? We are not interested in whether Mr. -
Stoebling 1is sick or 1ll. We are interested in the
books, and interested in proceeding at this time under
the resolution passed by the Assembly, and I think
that you should so advise Mr. Stoebling. When we get
ready to question Mr. Stoebling and he is 111, that

is another case, but this morning we are interested
in the books.

MR. PALESE: That is the question I put to the
Judge, whether or not the refusal was on his
suggestion or the suggestion of Mr. Stoebling, and
he Jjust said that we are entitled to the books.‘

MR. HABER: Well, I say, in answegflhe
question put by thg Assemblyman here, whether Mr.
Stoebling gets up there or not, and assuming that he
does not get up there, does it mean that y;u never
get the books? I say that you are entitled to the
books. You are, after all, the creature of the
Legislature that created the board or bureau, and,
as such, you are supreme in my estimation.

MR. PALESE: If that is true, why didn't you
advise him to make arrangements to have the books here
this morning?

MR. HABER: Well, I did discuss it with him,

and the mere fact that the books are in custody and
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under guard, he made this request, that he wants to
produce them personally, and I cameover here and--

MR. PALESE: You know it is a physical
impossibility for a man to bring here thirteen hundred
or fourteen hundred poll books. You know it is a
physical impossibility for Mr. Stoebling to bring here
before us thirteen hundred or fourteen hundred poll
books himself which I understaﬁd is the number of poll
books now in his custody or under his Supervision. It
becomes necessary for him to have aids and assistants
to bring those books here. Am I not correct about
that?

MR. HABER: You are correct.

MR. PALESE: What difference does it make
whether he tells you or tells John Jones to bring the
books herg, or whether he accompanies the books
in a truck and ;t&yﬂdownstairs and follows each
individual book as it is brought up to us?

MR. HABER: He is not a young man. He has
certain ways and he still insists that he wants to
be here when the Committee convenes, to make a state-
ment.

ﬁR. PALESE: On vhat?

MR. HABER: I don't know.
MR. GIULIANO; There was a definite promise
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made by someone in authority in Hudson County, that
these books would be here this morning. The subpoena4
as I understand 1t; said "forthwith," and after a
great deal of wrangling, they agreed to produce the
books here this morning.

We are not interested in Mr. Stoebling making
a statement when the books are delivered. If Mr,
Stoebling is called and put on the stand and if
he is ever questioned he can answer the questions
and say what he wants. We are not interested in
statements. We are interested in the records of
Hudson County, and we want them here this morning
and they should be here this morning.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: That is all right, I think,
as far as this is concerned, Judge. Understand
perfectly, we expect them here this morning. He
realizes the penalty of failure to obey a subpoena,
and I suggest that we recess until eleven o'clock to
give him a chance to produce the books.

MRS. SANFORD: I so move.

MR. OSMERS: I second the motion.

(Motion carried.)

(At this point a recess was taken until Mr.
Haber returned to the room, after which the Committee

resumed its hearing.)
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MR. HABER: I called Charlie Stoebling's home,
Mrs. Stoebling answered me. Charlie, of course, would
not answer the phone. I know that as a fact because
I know the physical layout. He 1s in bed. Mrs.
Stoebling said that she would talk to the doctor and
she would call me back in a little vhile,.and I have |
been waiting at the booth until she phoned me back. |

I can make no change in my report. Charlie isﬁn
no position to appear here. The doctor was there !
then and he cannot personally take the responsibility
to give you the books which are all in the vaults. !
I can just renew my former application to you, that :
you convince yourselves of the fact that at the present
time he i1s physically unable to appear, and you can
arrange for his production of the books on Monday,
after you talk to him yourself.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I have no desire to talk

to Mr. Stoebling. I want the books. Has he got a

representative of his office here?

MR. HABER: Well, Mr., Dowden is an attorney 1
representing the bureau. I do not represent the
buareau.

MR. GIULIANO: May I ask that Mr. Dowden be

sworn, Mr. Young?

|
|
l
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BENJAMIN DOWDEN, being duly sworn,
testified as follows:
EXAMINATION BY MR. GIULIANO:

Q Mr, Dowden, where are you employed? A. 1In the
Commissioner of Registration's 0ffice, Jersey City.

Q VWhat is your official title? A. I have no official
title. You are just designated as a clerk, under the Act.

Q@ Aren't you in the legal department? A. I handle
the legal end of the department, yes, sir.

Q Haven't you been the legal advisor of Mr, Stoebling
in the past? A. Yes, sir, and I still am.

Q@ You are the legal advisor of Mr, Stoebling?

A Yes.

Q Last night did Mr., Wiener talk with you with respect
ito the subpoena and the production of the books before this
rCommittee this morning? A. Yes, sgir,

Q As legal advisor to Mr, Stoebling did you not inform
Mr, Wiener that the books would be produced here, and that all
matters set forth in the subpoena would be here before the

~ Committee? A. Yes, sir.

Q As his legal advisor did you not think it proper that
i{the books be here this morning, as you had promised?

A Yes, sir.

Q Mr. Dowden, may I ask you now why you have changed

our mind? A. I haven't changed my mind.

o

b
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Ben jamin Dowden : 19.

Q@ Mr. Dowden, may I ask you why you have not insisted,

as the legal advisor, that the books be here this morning, as

you informed Mr, Wiener last night? . 4

A 'w111 the stenographer read the question? -

(The last question was read by the stenographeﬁ;)

THE WITNESS: I did insist.
Q Mr. Dowden, do you think that it 1s proper that the !
books are not here this morning? A, As far a; proper is
concerned, I would say I would have brought the books. The
gituation is this; I figured that there was & subpoena 1
served and that the better policy would be to have the books
brought here. I told Mr. Stoebling that 1t was my opinion.
He seemed to be very much perturbed over the fact that theré
was some Qquestion as to what would happen with the books when
they got here and got out of his custody.

He said, "I am primarily responsible for those books."JQ

Of course, when you are trying to describe something as I am

describing it here, it is difficult, because you have to

|
|

know the background of the situation. That man was laying in |

bed when I talked to him yesterday afternoon, and he was also

in bed last night. He seemed to be fearful that if he let the

books go out of his custody he would be responsible to someone
T told him that my personal opinion was that there was nothing

o fear. I said that it was a branch of the Leglislature. He

said, "I want to cooperate with them in every way," and, afte
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you any guaranties one way or the other, but I can tell you
and tell this committee that I have not changed my advice or
my opinion.

Q Mr. Dowden, then it 1is your opinion that the subpoena
was proper and legal? A. From a technical point of view,

I would say no, but from a practical point of view I would
have honored the‘subpoena.

Q@ Do you know that when the books are delivered to this
Committee, Mr. Dowden, no one has accéss to them except the
members of this Committee? A. I presume that is so.t
Q Do you know, and through you I presume that Mr,
i8toebling knows, that the records, when they are delivered to
this Committee, are put in a vault of a bank, or a vault with
proper protection? A, I don't know what Mr. Stoebling

knows. I can only speak for myself, and the things he might

. (have told me. I went on the theory that it was a branch of

the Legislature which was entitled to get all the cooperation
possible.

Q@ When did you last speak to Mr. Stoebling?

A I spoke to him last night.

Q@ At that time, what did he tell you? A, He saild
what there was a conflict of opinioh. He said he thoughtthe

better policy would be to come out here with a letter and

present it to the Committee and let the Committee do as it

4
E

all he said-- I am simply giving you my opinion. I can't give
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might deem fit.

.Q And do you believe that Mf. Stoebling has got some-
body else's opinion, when yoﬁ say that there is a conflict of
opinion? A. There certainly is a conflict of opinion,
when you decide one thing at four o'clock and later on you
change. There 1s certainly a conflict of opinion.

Q May I ask you if you know who the other person or
persons are who gave Mr. Stdebling an opinion?

A I don't know as he would have any special opinion
from anybody.

Q Is there anybody else in your office as a legal
advisor of Mr. Stoebling? A, Yes, Mr, Pass.

Q Mr, Pass was present last night? A. No, sir. He
was present with me yesterday afternoon.

Q@ Did you discuss with Mr. Pass the advisability of
idelivering the books this morning? A. No, sir. He was
there when we spoke. I took it on my own initiative'to
advise that they produce.

Q And Mr. Pass did not advise Mr, Wiener{also? 4

A Yes. Pass Qgs-there. There i1s no question about it.
We agreed to that yesterday afternoon.

Q And 1t is your opinion, and the other legal advisor
also 1s of the opipion, thaet the books were to be delivered

here this morning? A, I don't remember my saying they

woukd produce the books this morning. I advised that they be
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lproduced.
Q And Mr, Pass did not object, when you advised Mr.
; Wiener that the books would be here this morning?
‘ A No, because I am older and he generally follows what
I suggest. That is the reason. |
MR. GIULIANO: That is all.
BY CHAIRMAN.YOUNG:

Q It seems to me that you are actually employed as
counsel for the Commissioner of Registration? A, I call
it clerk. I act as counsel. In other words, I take care of
the 1egai aspects of the business.

Q For the Commissioner of Registration? A, Yes. As

a matter of fact, there is no designation of legal counsel
or, even, deputy. He simply gets such assistance as mdy be
necessary.
Q What I am trying to drive at is this: jou are emblode
by Mr. Stoebling, in his capacity as Commissioner of '
Registration,as his legal advisor? In that capacity?
A Yes, sir, that is the practical aspect of 1it.

‘H Q And the other gentleman, Mr. Pass, is also a colleaguﬂ

of yours in that capacity? A. Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Vbll, it seems to me, as the
1 matter stands, Mr. Stoebling being a public official,

1 and having been advised by his counsel, retained by

1 him as such public officiql,to produce the books




subpoenaed, that he has no right or obligation to
produce before this Committee private counsel giving

a different opinion. The matter stands as it did.

The subpoena was properly served. If his private
counsel, who is here, is sincere about Mr. Stoebling's

health, I should think that he would want to avoid

for him the possibility of an action for contempt,

and I think we will still wait for the books.

Will you inform Mr. Stoebling on that, as his

official counsel?

MR. DOWDEN: We will relay the message over
the telephone. |

MR. PALESE: These poll books, were they not
used in the recount? |

MR. DOWDEN: I think they were present at the |
recount, because when you have a recount they bring |
in the poll books with the boxes. }

MR. PALESE: Who produced the poll books for ‘
the purpose of the recount?

MR. DOWDEN: They were at the Commissioner's

office,
MR. PALESE: Were they used in the
Commissionerts office?

MR. DOWDEN: Yes.

MR. PALESE: Who got the books out of the safe%
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MR. DOWDEN: I think Miss Seglie.

MR. PALESE: Was Miss Seglie an employee of
the Commissioner's office?

MR. DOWDEN: Yes.

MR. PALESE: Who gave her the orders to produce
the books for the purposes of the recount?

MR. DOWDEN: Personally, I don't know who gave
her the orders. I am not trying to quibble., Mr,
Williams may know that better. I think when \
Commissioner Stoebling was taken sick that some
arrangement was made by the County Board for
assistance in carrying out the functions which would
ordinarily be carried out by the clerk of the Board.
I may be wrong on that., I am willing to stand
corrected on that.

BY MR. GIULIANO:

& In other words, the Commissioner of Registration did‘
not have to be present when the books were delivered at the
‘recount? Is that so? A. He wasn't there. There is no
- |question about that.

Q And a clerk of the office had the authority to deli%e}
|to the Board of Elections the respective poll books as they
wvere wanted at the recount? 1Is that so? A, Yes.

Q And Mr. Stoebling has not been at your office since

che time the recount started, which is some eight to ten weeks
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ago? Is that so? A. He h@s been there maybe a couple bf
times, maybe three or four times.
MR. PAUL WILLIAMS: He did not participate
in the recount?
MR. DOWDEN: No.

Q In other words, up to the present time, there have
been approximately 180 districts counted in the recount,
from the poll books in each district, making a total of 360
books, and those 360 books were produced at the Board of
Elections, at the recount by a clerk of Mr. Stoebling's
office? Is that so? A. I don't know whether I can answver
that yes or no, for this reason; I think he was designated
by resclution of the County Board of Elections, to take his
place. 4

MR. DOWDEN: Mr. Williams, you know that.

Q I am not interested in what Mr. Williams knows. I

~ lwvant to know from you, as counsel to the Commissioner of

" |lRegistration if it is not a fact that some 360 poll books have

been produced at the recount before the Hudson County Board of
"ﬁlections by a clerk of your office? Is that a fact or
Ajfsn't it? A. Yes,

d Q It is so? A, Yes, |
. [BY CHAIRMAN YOUNG:

Q@ You say that that clerk, Mr. Dowden, was deputized by

the County Board of Elections? A, I am not sure, but my
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recollection is that when Commissioner Stoebling was sick,
in view of the recount something would have to be done, and I |
think they passed a resolution. I am not positive about
that but I am pretty certain that the County Board passed a
resolutionvauthorizing her to take over the dutiles.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: The circumstance, then, 1s

that there 1s actually a deputy.

BY MR. GIULIANO:

Q Isn't it a fact, Mr. Dowden, that in your capacity as |
legal assistant or legal aid to the Commissioner of
Registration, you, knowing the election procedure under a
recount, that‘all Poll books are in the custody of the
Commissioner of Registration and that he must produce them

for examination in his office? A, The poll books are not

always there. The lasf recount we had over there, some of
the poll boqks would occasionally be found in the boxes.

"Hhen they closed them at election time they dropped them right
in the boxes.
Q You know that is an error? A. I know that is an |
“Jerror but you asked me a Qquestion and I am answering 1it.

Q Isn't it the proper procedure in a recount, that all

f the books should be in the custody of the Commissioner of

egistration? Isn't that the proper procedure? A. No.

¥y understanding is that it goes under the jurisdiction of the

.Vgounty Board of Elections.




Benjamin Dowden . 27.|

Q That is your understanding? A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Well, the recount is
terminated, anyway. We will just wait here and you
can tell Mr. Stoebling to inform his deputy/to send
them over.

MR. DOWDEN: All right.

MR. OSMERS: I move for a ten minute recess.

MRS. SANFORD: I second the motion.

(Motion carried.)

(Following the recess, Mr. Dowden returned
to the room and made the following statemeqt.)

MR. DOWDEN: Mr. Chairman, in compliance
with your instructions I phoned Mr. Stoebling's
house. I was unable to talk to Mr. Stoebling. I w&s
talking to Mrs. Stoebling. She said that he cannot
possibly be disturbed; that he is sound asleep at
this time. I told her what you had said, and I told
her I would report back.

She said that, "If they want they can come
over with their doctor and see that we are speaking
the truth."

That is the only thing I can report to you, and

it 1s up to you people to make such order as you want.

I am not trying to stall you. You can go over there;

sir, with your own physician and see what the situation
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iw. ’ |

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I don't care to call on Mr.

Stoebling. I want the books. I just say to you [
that you have twenty minutes to get the books. I 1

tell you that as counsel for Mr. Stoebling.

I say to you also that I have beenAdovnstairs \
and looked up the law. Unless the books are on their
vay today I shall apply to the Speaker of the House

'for the 1ssuance of a warrant for Mr, Stosbling's '

arrest, for the sergeant-at-arms, i1f necessary, to

go in there and get Mr. Stoebling out and get the
books out also. That i1s all there is to 1it.
MR. GIULIANO: May I say that this 1s a lot of!
i
stalling. Mr. Dowden admitted that one of the clerks#
Miss Seglie, delivered two books, as the boxes were

|
|
counted from each district, at the recount. Some }
360 books were delivered without Mr. Stoebling ever !

\

being at the recount, if I remember correctly, and }
I think that my memory is correct, and I see no
reason, unless there is a hidden reason that we know
nothing about. Those books should be here, and if

the Chairman advises that a warrant be issued,'I
believe counsel feels the same way. We have got to

have those books today, not Monday, not Tuesday or ani

other day. We want them now, as the subpoena reads.
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Stop stalling. We ask no more except what is in the k

subpoena. |
CHAIRMAN YOUNG: That is the situation, and you

can avoid for Mr. 3toebling a lot of embarrassment

and discomfort.

MR. MURRAY: Last night about eleven o'clock

|
|
I was up to Mr, Stoebling's office,and Miss Seglie

was there.. I asked what the disposition was, what
disposition was going to be made this morning in
reference to those books and she told me that she underL
stood that orders would be issued to her this morning.
Evidently, orders have been issued by Mr. Stoebling

not to give those books up. There is no necessity for

Mr, Stoebling to get out of bed to give the orders to

deliver them any more than it is necessary for him |

to get out of bed to give the order not to deliver
them,
CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Mr. Murray, we realize that. |

We are waiting for the books. You had better get in

touch with Miss Seglie, Mr. Dowden.

MR. GIULIANO: May I suggest that Mr. Dowden
call Mr. Stoebling and give him the opinion of this
Committee?

CHAIRMAN YOUﬁG: Mr. Stoebling is incapacitated

and by Mr. Dowden's own #dmission he has a'deputya
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The deputy 1sluiss Seglie.

MR, DOWDEN: It is up to the Committee.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: All right, I direct it. This
Committee will so authorize me to do. I will call her
right up now.

(At this point a recess was taken.)

CHAIRMAN YOUNG (following the recess): I just
vant to state for the record that in compliance with
the Committee's instructions I called Miss Seglie.

She admitted that she has been acting as deputy for
Mr. Stoebling. 8She admits that the books have remained
at the office in her charge. I directed her,
therefore, as his deputy to bring the books over or
send them over. B8he refused to do so on the ground that
she had received direct orders from Mr. Stoebling not
to do so, and she did not dare to disobey those orders,
That 1s all that I can see there is to say.

MR. GIULIANO: Then, Mr. Chairman, I think we
ought to follow your suggestion, that the Speaker of
the House and the Sergeant-at-arms be notified, and
that a warrant be issued holding Mr. Stoebling in
contemﬁt for the refusal to deliver the books as set
forth in the subpoéena.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: That, of course; will have to

be set forth on a definite date. If it is consonant .




with the thoughts of the Committee and with the

opinions of what should be done, I will have the
warrant prepared, served and returnable here Tuesday
at some time.

MR. OSMERS: That is satisfactory to me.

MR. GIULIANO: Mr, Chairman, if we wait until
Tuesday, I am a 1ittle skeptical, about holding the
procedure off until Tuesday. It certainly gives Mr.
S8toebling from now until Tuesday, and I believe that
that 18 just the time he wants.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Time to get out of town.

MR. GIULIANO: I don't know whether he wants
?o get out of town but I cannot see why a public
official, with public records which the public
itself 1s allowed to come in and look at, why you,

a Committee, a creature of the Leglislature, must be
refused those things that an individual is entitled
to. You give Mr, Stoebling until Tuesday. I don't
~know 1f Mr. Stoebling 1s even going to be in Jersey
City. We have no reason to believe he will be in
Jersey City. I say that we ought to meet tonight
before twelve o'clock and the warrant should be
issued making it returnable immediately, sometime
today.

CHATIRMAN YOUNG: I think this suggestion to
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- hear Mr. Stoebling apparently is only a desire on his
part that the books shall be delivered to the
Committee in his presence. I therefore suggest that
we go to his home and that the books be there produced

VMR. GIULIANO: As counsel may I say this, and
I know that Mr, Murray joins me in saying that we

are perfectly willing to leave here now and go to

Mr. 8toebling's home and make a demand for the books, 1
and if he has a stafement to make let him make it theni

MR. MURRAY: Mr. Chairman, may I impress on r
you, the same as Jimmy has, of the absolute necessity l
of quick action on this matter. I don't think it woulq
be too much to ask the Committee to do this: let us |
get the warrant issued, let us get it served, and let |
us put someone there to see that Mr. Stoebling does noé
get out of the city. If he 1is too ill to act today,
then let us do it today, not Tuesday. That i1s what i
they want. Perhaps, the books wonft be there by |
Monday. This is Saturday.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: It will save us coming down
Tuesday. It will help to get around the technical
objections that Mr. Stoebling has made that the books
be delivered to the Committee in his presence.

MR GIULIANO: If that is the only objection,

Mr. Chairman, I think we ought to go over there. Mr.
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Stoebling said that he would deliver the books.

MR. PALESE: I moée that this Committee forth-
with adjourn tq the home of Mr. 8Stoebling in Jersey
City.

MRS. SANFORD: I second the motion.

MR. MURRAY: ‘May I suggest in the meantime
that we get someone working, to have the Speaker
or Sergeant-at-arms get the warrantdrawn up so that
at his refusal it will be ready imgédiately to be
served, or as soon thereafter s it will be possible
to do so. |

MR. OSMERS: Is that motion carried?

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Yes. We ask for the coopera-
tion of Mr. Miller to hold the office of the

Commissioner of Registration in Jefsey City open until

this Committee has been at the home of Mr., Stoebling.




(Following the hearing at the Essex County
Court House, Newark, New Jersey, the Committee de-
parted for the residence of Mr. Stoebling at 50 |
Glenwood Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey, ﬁhere the
following discussion took place between the members i
of the Committee and Dr. Robert Stockfish, personal
physician to Mr. Stoebling.) |

DR. STOCKFISH: I understand that all of
you gentlemen are here for a definite purpose, and
I was told that you were going to arrest Mr. Stoebling
or something or other. The one thing I'would like
to have you keep in mind is this. I will tell you ‘
my side of the story. I have just got an inkling
of this, and I am here, definitely here, for a very
definite purpose.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: We have subpoenaed Mr.
Stoebling to produce before us in Newark certain
records of his office. In the opinion of the
Committee and in the opinion of Mr. Stoebling's
counsel, as an official and not as a private counsel,
those records can be delivered>without Mr. Stoebling
being present. We don't care to see Mr. Stoebling.
We don't care to have him come to Newark. We don't

wvant anything but those records.

His request, made through his personal counseli
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apparently was that he was willing to bring the
records wvhen he was physically capable of doing so.
When they were brought they would be turned over to
the Committee and remain in the Committee's

custody, in any event. We, therefore, thought,

in view of Mr. Stoebling's illness, if we could come
here, if he insists on turning over the records
personally, the Committee could come here and have
him turn them over to us. They will be taken care
of absolutely and properly by us.

We hate to invade his home this vay, but we
have subpoenaed the records and the records were not
produced. He has given orders that he will not givé
us those records. Even if he gave the orders
to turn them over to us he will be acting on advice
of counsel.

DR. STOCKFISH: The official part of this
I know nothing of. I am merely here in the capacity
of his private physician, to tell you what it 1is,
and to absolutely and definitely warn you that he
cannot be taken away from that room and cannot be
seen. His condition was so serious that I was called
away from the hospital where I was treating a case,
and I have stayed here for the past hour, It was

necessary for me to give him a sedative, and at the

|
|




26,

present time he is sleeping. I just made sure now
when I went in that that was still the case, and by
no means is it possible'at the present time to see
him, and certainly by no means is it possible to move
him. As far as the official part of the business
is concerned I have nothing to do with that. Mr.
Doherty perhaps can tell you about that.

MR. GIULIANO: Doctor,can you tell us
definitely how long this man is going to be 1117

DR. STOCKFISH: I couldn't answer definitely.

MR. GIULIANO: A week, a month, two weeks?

DR. STOCKFISH: Certainly not a week. It

will be at least a month. That would be about the
minimum.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: You see, Doctor, the situation

is this; we cannot proceed with our business’vhile
he 1s adopting the attitude that he has, which,
incidentally, is inconsistent with the attitude f
that he has heretofore adopted in regard to the
recount. The only thing that we ask Mr. Stoebling
to do is to countermand an order and place a deputy
in his office, an order in which he directed that .
the subpoena be not obeyed. We are asking that he

direct that 1t be obeyed. That takes nothing but a

wvord from you or a word from Mr, Stoebling to the

et o T
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secretary, Miss Seglie, who has been acting as his
deputy. That 1s all we are asking of you. We do
not care to see him. We do not caré to take him out
of here. We do not care to do anything else in
that regard but we do ask that that be done.

. DR, STOCKFISH: I, myself, of course,
would not give any 0.K. to the request, of course,
I am only here as a physician.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: If it cannot be done I am
afrald we will have to issue a warrant and that
varrant will have to be executed on the records,
not on Mr. Stoebling. It will be executed on the
records. I am only asking you personally as his
physician to impress on him that he is acting on
advice of counsel if he gives us the records. The
records themselves will be protected in every way.
We have guards and an amored truck and a bank vault
to place them in. There can be no criticism of that
in complying with our request.

The onlj thing Ibcan say, I don't know how
long it will be that Mr, Stoebling will be asleep,
but I think a part of the Committee i1s perfectly
willing to walt until he can be awakened, to give some

answer to that proposition.

DR. STOCKFISH: The waiting part is all right




38,

with me. After all, it has just been half an hour
that he has been sleeping. Would some of the
Committee be willing to wait a couple of hours?
CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I would; three hours or
four hours. You don't think he will be ready or
awake in an hour? We have a bank vault being held
open for Mr. Stoebling's records. We have all the
people in his office waiting for Mr. Stoebling to

wake up, and we have a truck waiting for Mr, Stoebling

to wake up, and we propose to wait.

DR. STOCKFISH: If you gentlemen knew what
coronary disease of the heart 1s you would know what |
a serious proposition I am’ up against. That will
drpp a person suffering from it any day, and any
unusual excitement is all that we need to set that \
in flight. You have gbt a thrombosis in one of the
blood vessels. That is the finish. He was close to
that three years ago and he dropped, and I wouldn't é

vant such a thing to happen again, but I realize that

something must be done. :

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Doctor, Mr. Stoebling con-

ferred with Mr. Dowden and Mr. Pass and I believe that |
he conferred with Judge Haber last night. Isn't it |
possible that he can be spoken to today for five

minutes on the same matter by you, if you care to do 1t?
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DR. STOCKFISH: Will you just let me go inside

for about five minutes? ‘

(At this point Dr. Stockfish went out of the
foom, after which he returned and made the following
statemént.)

DR. STOCKFISH: The answer at the present time
is no, right now. You will be back about three
o'clock? »

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Dector, is that your answer

or Mr. Stoebling's answer?

DR. STOCKFISH: That is my answer. I didn't

even awaken him. It is not how he feels about this

|
thing. It is how I feel about how his condition 1is.
CHAIRMAN YOUNG: We appreciate that, Doctor.
DR. STOCKFISH: I am figuring on perhaps
J

a certain amount of rest to reduce the 1rre§ularity

|
which is now present in the blood, which means that |
there is a danger sign. If I wake him before he ‘
has a certain amount of rest, I don't know what is |
going to happen. Ilprefer to have this extra time ;
to see if we can straighten.out the ;rregularity
that he has had,

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: There is something peculiar

about it. I understand from his office that directions

were given at his office, presumably at his request,

e L
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that>everyone leave his office.

DR. STOCKFISH: I don't know anything about that.
I wasn't here.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: That went in in thé last
twentj minutes.

DR. STOCKFISH: If there was any'such thing,
it wasn't while I was in there with the patient.

MR. PALESE: Do you mean to say that you ﬁere
in there and waited there five minutes and didn't say

a word about 1it?

DR. STOCKFISH: I did not. I absolutely did

not speak to him, |

MR. PALESE: Did it take you all that time to
find outAthat he was asleep, to give us his answer? |
DR. STOCKFISH: No, I went in there to test his
pulse and watch the breathing. The pulse must not
be tested every twenty seconds or every minute. It
must be tested at frequent intervals, to test this

irregularity. Sometimes it may not be present in

three or five minutes.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: We are.going over to his
office.

DR. STOCKFISH: What you gentlemen do in that
respect means qothing to me.,

MR. MURRAY: Doctor, would you say that an
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arrangement whereby his own depﬁty, Miss Seglie,

| and the Chairman of this éommittee would go into the

room-- would you say that that would be apt to

so unduly perturb him that it might have a serious
over

affect? Just to give them an order to turn, the

records or the words, "Turn the records over to

the Conmittee"?

DR. STOCKFISH: Right now?

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: No, not this minute.

DR. STOCKFISH: Right now I would say
definitely the answer is no. When I come back in
two hours I will again see wvhat the situation 1is,
and I will again at that time acquaint you of his
condition to see what the chances are.

MR. MURRAY: That is not answering my
question.

DR, STOCKFISH: I can't answer the question as

‘to what his condition is going to be two hours from
now, until I see what it is two hours from now.

MR. MURRAY: If you woke him right now, and
his deputy, Miss Seglie, and you-and tﬂg.chairman
went in, all he would have to say would be, "Turn

the records over to the committee.” Would you say,

in your opinion, that the effect would be so




detrimental that it should not be done? !

DR. STOCKFISH: If he were awake and I thought!
that his heart action was stronger and that the
irregularity which is nowv there had disappeared,
and that his general condition would warrant that,

I should say yes.

MR. MUORRAY: You would say yes what?

DR. STOCKFISH: I would say that he could
see you only if those conditions are present.

MR..GIULIANO= You don't think it is
dangerous for such a question to be asked him or for |
him to make such a statement, do you?

DR. STOCKFISH: You have to realize that the
man has been on edge for several months. He has |
been hounded on the right and left, and I well know
of 1t because every time I see him his condition is
worse. When he is képt avay from phones and business
his condition is better. As soon as Someone comes
in and hounds and pounds him then there'is a drop.

| MR. GIULIANO: Do you think that we are
hounding him? These are public records.
~DR. STOCKFISH: I am not stating that you are.
There are other people wanting this and that and the
other thing.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: May I ask you this; is this
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hounding, if we, as a public committee make a public
request? Is that what you call hounding?

DR. STOCKFISH: No, I am not speaking about
you gentlemen., I am speaking of other petty things
that come into his official 1life; perhaps something
more serious, and other things which I cannot even
discuss, in the family. All things have been
detrimental to his condition. He is sitting right
now on a can of dynamite. He is sitting there, and
I don't know which way it is going to blow. ‘

MR. GIULIANO: You are speaking of his

health; not political.

DR, STOCKFISH: I am speaking of his health.
MR. MURRAY: Don't you think that this affair,

of this Committee coming here, if it was terminated

don't you think that that would tend to ease him up,
|
if it vere terminated?

DR. STOCKFISH: I wish I could answer it.

I can't answer it. I only know he is in some sort of

|
|
|
political tarmoil.
\
MR. MURRAY: I mean, the physical effects of
this mental agitation. Don't you think the physical

reaction would be beneficial?

DR. STOCKFISH: I imagine anything that would be

a good end to anything is good physically, both
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physically and mentally.

MR. MURRAY: And while in a suspended state---

DR. STOCKFISH: Then you are in a suspended
state.

MR. GIULIANO: Has he a nurse here watching
him all the time?

DR. STOCKFISH: I have been phoning for one.
She has not been here,

MR. MURRAY: Mrs.Stoebling, 1s he conscious
of the fact that we are here or is he under the
influence of thé sedatives, or doesn't he know that?

MRS .STOEBLING: He doesn't know a word of it.

MR; MURRAY: Then we are not exciting'him.

DR. STOCKFISH: If he did he must have been i
acquainted of the fact before I came here, not during
my stay here.

MR. WILLIAMS: Ben, did you ask Miss Seglie
to keep the office open there?

MR. DOWDEN: I told her to wait,
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|

ALICE S EGLIE, being duly sworn according to

law, testified as follows:
IBY MR. YOUNG:

Q You are employed by whom, Miss Seglie?

A By the Hudson County Board of Elections.

Q That is a Civil Service position? A. Yes, 1t 1s.

Q What are yowduties in your employment?

A I am clerk-stenographer for the Board.

Q VWhat are your specific duties? A. I take care
of all the records and minutes and correspondence, and
whatever comes up for Mr. Stoebling I take care of, and the
Board.

Q Have you the combination of the vault in which the

lrecords of Mr, Stoebling are kept? A. You mean this
{vault here (indicating)?

Q Mr., Stoebling's records, the poll books and the
signature copy records? A, They are all in this vault
rta.t the present time. Yes, I have that.

Q You have a key for that vault? A, Yes, I have.

Q Are there any other persons besides yourself that

have access to that vault? A, Mr, Stoebling; that is all.

Q Just you and Mr. Stoebling have access to that vault?
A Positively.

Q How long has Mr. Stoebling been sick, Miss Seglie?

A He has really been home-- at the time I think the
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Ziegener count started. That was right after the primary i
election, I believe.

@ During that time have the poll books and signature ;
copy registers remained impounded?

A VWhich are you referring to? The General Election? |

Q The General Election. A.They were impounded at the tiAe
the recount started.

Q Where have they been kept? A. Right in this
vault here, never left out of there.

Q Have any of them been taken from the vault since?

A No. The only time the poll books were taken out was

the time the districts were counted. We then took out the
districts, they were counted and put them back.

Q Then they were removed from that vault?

A Taken ouﬁ here and brought on to the table. The

Commissioner would hand them to counsel, and they would be

. |returned to the vault.

Q@ VWho was in charge of the operation of removing them '

‘from the vault? A, Ve had two of the men from :hhe i :
office take a ballot box out and the poll books; they either ?

fjhanded them to me or to Commissioner Wittreich or to i

#Commissioner Sullivan, and they in turn allowed counsel on

;; both sides to examine them. Then they closed the books up
and put it back in the vault.

Q Do you know that a subpoena has been served on Mr.
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Str9eb11ng to produce the original duplicate signature
binders of the ten districts of the First Ward of Jersey
City, and the poll books for all of the districts in Hudson
Céunty; that the subpoena was served yesterday to produce
them forthwith before this Committee in Essex County?

A No, sir, I didn't see it and I haven't heard a thing
about 1t.

Q@ You didn't read about it in the paper?

A I didn't read any paper. I was working here until
10:30 last night.

Q Have you had any instructions today about the
vaults? A. We had planned to return the ballot boxes to
Jersey City, Union City, and Hoboken, in reference to the
last three counts, and last night I got word I was to hold

them here until Monday.

not direct, but from his wife.

Q His wife called you? A. I have not spoken to

|Mr. Stoebling. I called last night whether I should release

:?the boxes and let everything go out. She told me I should
thold them.

Q VWhat do you mean by "let everything go out”?

A Just the ballot boxes and whatever we had, to the

fyity Clerks, in reference to the last three éounts.

Q What instructions did you have with regard to the

Q@ From whom did you get that word? A, Mr. Stoebling;
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vault today? A. Nothing outside of not to let any of
the boxes go out until I heard further from him.

@ Did you receive instructions last night as to what
was to be done with the vault? A, Yes, He told me not
to open the vault or let anyone go at it.

Q You were directed not to open the vault, 1is tha£ 80?

A Yes,

Q Through Mrs. Stoebling? A, Yes,

Q You recollect that I spoke to you on the phone this
morning? A, Yes, sir, I do.

Q I requested you, if you could, to turn over to the
Committee those matters which had been subpoenaed.

A What matters?

Q The signature copy registers for the ten districtﬁ
of the First Ward of Jersey City, and all of the poll books
of the county? A. Yes,

Q I asked you if you could turn those over to me?

A Yes.

Q@ I believe I said that I understood you had access to
| them during the recount? A, Yes, that is right,

Q Your reply to me was what, if you recollect?

A I don't recall what I said to you. I just don't
remember what I sald.

Q Didn't you tell me that you had received orders

ot to open the vault or to let anything go out?

—_—y




Alice Seglie k 49,

A That is right.
Q Did you not state, having received those orders, that
| you were in no position to do anything else but obey them?

A That is right, yes.

Q@ Those are Mr. Stoebling's orders? A. Yes,

Q@ Delivered to you through --

A His wife. She told me he was not well enough to
come to the phone, and she said that Mr. Stoebling said
I shouldn't let any boxes or anything go out of there until I
heard further.

Q You received a telephone call about twelve o'clock

vith respect to keeping the office open, did you not?

I dia.
From whom? A. Mr. Dowden.

A
@
Q Could you tell us specifically what that request was?:
A No, I don't. I heard so many things. I just don'tﬁ

iremember what he told me. He just sald something about stay-‘
‘»}ng there and not leaving the office. (
| Q Did you receive a subsequent telephone call or a prioﬁ
?all from Mrs.Stoebling? A. I spoke to her a few times |
is morning in reference to different things.
Q Did you speak to her about leaving the office?
A Yes, I told her I was géing to leave.

Q What time was that? A, I don't remember. I

gpoke to her several times.
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Q@ Was it before or after you had received the telephone
call from Mr. Dowden, that you told her you were going to
leave? A. I don't remember now.

Q Did she say that you might go or did you simply say
that you were going? A. I said I was leaving, and that is
all.

Q Now, assuming that you called her before you'received
the phone call from Mr, Dowden, and you told her you were
leaving, did you then, upon receiving the telephone call from
Mr. Dowden, call Mrs., Stoebling and ask for instructions?

A No, I was talking to her about different things. »
just told her 2 was leaving. She didn't mention anything
labout that any more. I just said I was going.

Q You didn't inform her that you had had a request to
stay here? A. No. I just told her I was leaving; that is
gll.

Q How many phone calls did you make to Mrs. Stoebling?
A I don't remember. I have been on the phone all
horning, between Mrs. Stoebling and Mr. Dowden and a couple

?f other people. I don't remember how many calls I made.

Q@ I mean to Mrs. Stoebling. A, I spoke to her a few
:1mes.

Q@ You spoke to her a few times? A, Yes. It wasn't
only in reference to the office. I spoke to her about

ifferent things.

|
!




Q

Alice Seglie L 51.

Did she call you or did you call her?

I called her.

In each instance? A. I guess she called me, but
remember now. I spoke to her a few times.

MR. OSMERS: I heard Miss Seglie make the
statement-- I spoke to her in front of this building--
that Stoebling had called her up and told her to
leave.

MISS SEGLIE: Mr. Stoebling did not call me.

MR. OSMERS: And when I asked you about it
later you said that it was his wife.

MISS SEGLIE: Positively not; I have not spokeq
to Mr. Stoebling.

MR. OSMERS: You changed it, but you made the }

statement that Stoebling had called up. Did they
call you up and tell you to leave or did they not?
Did they or did they not? Did they call you or did
they not? I heard you say they did.

MIS8 SEGLIE: S8he called me, yes,

MR. OSMERS: Who told you to leave?

MISS SEGLIE: I wvas talking to her and I said
I was going to leave now and she said, "All right." |

MR. OSMERS: Why did you say downstairs that i
you called her and she told you to leave? !

MISS SEGLIE: That 1s the same thing. J
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MR. OSMERS: It is the same thing?
BY MR. GIULIANO:
Q Miss Seglie, in the recount, when the books were de-
livered to the Board, did you have to get instructions every

time from Mr. Stoebling? A, What do you mean; did I have

to get instructions?

Q The poll books were delivered to counsel and to the
Board of Elections? A. Yes,

| Q Did you have to call Mr. Stoebling or did Mr. Stoebling
have to call you when the poll books were delivered for
examination? A. VWhen the poll books are here during the
course of the recount, they are in charge of the County Board.

Q You are positive sbout that? A. As far as I know, |

yes.
Q Are you sure about that? A, I think so, |
Q@ If you were called now to deliver those books for :
jexamination here, what 1s your answer? A, As I understand,

|when Mr. Corcoran read the order yesterday about the dis-

ontinuance of the recount, I remember correctly-- I think he |

said that the poll books, after the recount terminated, were

en in the hands of the Commissioner of Registration. <
Q@ And you are the only person now in charge of the poll

[books as a result of their being returned to the office of

he Commissioner of Registration? Is that so?
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A The only thing I know, they are invthe vault, and
|I am the only one besides Mr. Stoebling that has the com-
bination.

Q You are the clerk, the deputy,in charge of the re-
cords as they now stand, are you? A, I am clerk-stenograpk
to the Board of Elections; no deputy.

Q' Are you now in charge of the records as they are in
this department? A. Well, I take my orders from Mr.
Stoebling.

BY MR. YOUNG:

Q Mr, Wiener has just within the Iast few minutes served

you with a subpoena to produce those records? A. Yes,
Q They are the same records that Mr,-- ‘

A (Interrupting) I have a subpoena here. I didn't see
-}justwhat it called for.
| MR. HABER: I would like to say something
at this time, | |

MR. GIULIANO: Miss Seglie 1s testifying,
Judge. I don't want to have a disturbance. I think
she can read it alone. I don't know who you re-
present.

MR. HABER: I was asking, a few minutes ago--
1? you want this off the record.

MR. PALESE: May I have that subpoena for a

second? Let us read it to her.
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(Miss Seglie hands paper to Mr. Palese.)

MR. PALESE: Have you read it?

MISS SEGLIE: Yes, I have read it now.

MR. PALESE: Do you understand it?

MISS SEGLIE: I believe I do.

MR. PALESE: I will read it into the record.

This subpoena reads as follows:

'NEW JERSEY, ss: The State of New Jersey to

Alice Fila, Custodian of the Vault in the Office of the
Commissioner of Registration of Hudson County, said
office being located on the seventh floor, 591 Summit
Avenue, Jersey City.

WE COMMAND AND SUMMON YOU, to lay aside all and singular,
ﬂbusiness and excuses, and personally to be and appear before

ithe Special Committee of the House of Assembly, which was

|

lwfeated by resolution of the House of Assembly, adopted on the
'}7th day of January, 1938, and directed to make a survey of
j2all questions of public interest, including a survey of the
  inances and expenditures of the State, Counties and
icipalities; to investigate violations of law and the
leonduct of any State, County or Municipel official; State,
? ounty, or Municipal Department; State, County or Municipal
Conmission; State, County or Municipal Board or State,

i ounty or Municipal body; to investigate alleged fraudulent
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l
of or altering of, or counting ballots cast at sald General
Election; to investigate the alleged tampering with, or '
altering gf permanent registration records and duplicates

| thereof, the poll books and other.eleétion records, used |
at or provided for, sald General Election; to investigate l
alleged fraudulent and i1llegal conduct on the part of the
County Board of Elections and on the part of the District
Board of Elections at sald General Election; to ascertain ‘
 whether the duties of such officials, departments,
cdmmissions, boards, bpdies and of such County Boards of ‘

'Eiection and of such District Boards of Election have been

or are being lawfully and properly discharged, and to report
its findings as a basis for such legislative action as the

Generﬁl Assembly may deem necessary and proper, on the 29th |
day of January, 1938, at tvo o'clock in the forenoon of saild ?
date, at said office, to testify all and singular wvhat you E
know concerning the said matter under inquiry, and bring ‘

before the said Committee at the time and place above

mentioned all the poll books used in each and all of the

election districts, wards, municipalities, of Hudson County |

in the last General Electlon held November 2, 1937. ;

(s1gned) Henry Young, Jr.
Chairman

ATTEST :

8) MILTON SCHAMACK

Clerk of Committee."
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MR. PALESE: Are the poll books that were used
in the last election in the vault?

MISS SEGLIE: Yes, they are.

MR. PALESE: Have you the combination for the
vault?

MISS SEGLIE: Yes, I have.

MR. PALESE: Now, we ask you to give us the
poll books.

MISS SEGLIE: I don't think I have any
authority to do that unless I have word from Mr.
Stoebling.

BY MR. GIULIANO:

Q Again I ask you, Miss Seglie, did you get authority
every time you turned the poll books over to the persons in
the last recount? A. Yes, I did, from the County Board.

Q Every time? A. In the morning before we started
the recount, and when the four commissioners were here, Mr.
Corcoran or Mr. Wittreich or Commissioner Sullivan or Mr. |
S8cheetz would be here and I would open 1t up. At the end
they would close 1t.

At that time they were in the hands of the

ounty Board.

Q Now they are in your hands? A. Now I understand

hey are in the hands of the Commissioner of Registration.

Q You are acting as his deputy? A. I tske orders |
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from him,
Q@ You are acting as his deputy? A, I am acting under
his orders.
Q I am asking, you are acting as his deputy?
I do what he tells me to do.

he told
Whethdﬁkme last night not to turn over the ballot

A

Q Did he tell you last night to turn over the books?

A
boxes or open the vault for anyone?

Q Did he tell you last night not to open the vault
or turn over the books? A. No.

Q@ Did Mr. Dowden tell you? A, No, sir.

Q Did Mr. Pass tell you to turn them over? i

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I think, Miss Seglie, under

the circumstances, and if the Committee agrees with

me, that we as the Committee of the Legislature
investigating this office, do now direct you to open
the vault and turn over the books.

MISS SEGLIE: I don't think I have any |
authority to open it up.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: We are not asking you for
the authority. We are asking yoﬁ to turn them over
to us.

MISS SEGLIE: I am giving you my opinion.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: I am asking you if you refuse

to do so or you are just giving your opinion? ‘



MISS SEGLIE: Yes, I will have to refuse.

|BY MR. WIENER:
Q@ Miss Seglie, do you know of any preparations that
Sl wvere made last night for the turning over of these poll

books today? A. I can honestly say that I saw you,

and no word was ever sald to me last night about any poll
| books,
Q Vere you at any time present when Mr. Miller and

f!r. Dowden instructed the men to be here at eight-thirty,

A I instructed the men.

Q At whose request? A. At ﬁhe County Board's request
yesterday to return the ballot boxes to the three
municipalities.

Q Do you know of any preparations that were being

iade to get these poll books out of here this morning?

A The only thing I knew was from what I could hear you
8peaking or someone else, and I didn't pay any attention

o 1t. I wvasn't told anything.

Q Didn't I personally tell you that it was my
iInderstanding that these books were to be surrendered to me
Ehis morning? A. You did last night, I think.

Q That the men would be here along with a truck early
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¢ people that havé access to the vault? A, Positively.

'should refuse to open the vault? A, Yes, I don't think

Alice Seglie

this morning, to carry out the wishes of Commissioner
Stoebling? A. You told me that but I haven't spoken to
Mr. Stoebling about 1t.

Q When you left here it was your understanding, 1is
that true, that those books were to be turned over to me
this morning?

A I understood I was to open the vault and release the
ballot boxes.

Q VWhen you left here last night, after your conversation
with me, regardless of in whose presence it was, was it your
understanding that I was to come here this morning with a
truck to get these poll books? A, That 1is what you told
me.

Q Were there any people present when I told you that?

A I don't remember.

Q Wasn't that in the presence of Mr. Dowden and Mr,
Miller, when we discussed that? A, It might have been;

I don't remember.
Q There were other people iIn the office?
A There is alwvays people around there.

Q Did you say that you and Mr. Stoebling were the only

Q@ Has Mr, Stoebling's representative directed that you |

I have the right to do it unless I am told.
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Q You are not refusing to do that by virtue of the
fact that you are at present the custodian and only person
who can get into that vault?

A What do youmean?

Q I mean by that it is not your personal opinion, or
are you doing that because you have been so instructed?

& I am doing that because I feel-- because if I
do open the vault I should get my orders from Mr. Stoebling.

Q@ You individually,personally, are in charge of this
particular vault? A. When Mr, Stoebling is out, yes.

Q As custedian of that vault, the fesponsibility being
at present yours because Mr., Stoebling is not here; you
refuse to open the vault, unless Mr. Stoebling authorizes
you to do so? A. That is right. I feel, whatever I
do, I want a superior --

Q Now, Mr, Stoebling, personally or through some

representative of his, presumably his wife, has instructgd
you not to open the vault for anybody?

A That is right.

Q@ Today? A. Yes.

Q@ Then the matter of your not opening the vault is not
a personal act of yours but you are acting on orders?

A Orders.

Q Directly or indirectly from Mr. Stoebling?

A Yes, that is right.
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Q Therefore, you refuse on the ground that you have

lbeen told by your superior not to open the vault?

A That is right.

d Q@ Now, Miss Seglie, concerning the telephone con-
versation from Mrs. Stoebling, Mrs. Stoebling, I believe,
instructed you or requested you, or you told her that you were

fgoing to leave this office at about one o'clock?

A Yes,
Q@ Which was prior to the time that the Legislative
Committee was to arrive at Mr. Stoebling's home?

A I don't know just what time they were to arrive

Q Did I at that time tell you that the Committee was
xpected at Mr., Stoebling's home, and that in my opinion
ir, Stoebling had already made up his mind not to turn over
jhese books in line with his promise,because you were being |
pstructed to leave the premises, in view of the fact that
pu were the only person in addition to Mr. Stoebling who
d access to the particular ;ault, and in that event that
. Stoebling had had it impressed on him to open the vault
d produce the books, because there would be no one here to |
that? A, I think that is right.

MR, PALESE: I think we ought to recess and

take up the advisability of holding this girl in con-

tempt for refusal to obey the subpoena?
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MR. WIENER: May I suggest that the Committee
recess. Miss Seglie is still under subpoena.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: It is possible that Mr.
Stoebling is willing to take Miss Seglie off the spot.
We are hoping to see him around three o'clock. I
suggest that we request Miss Seglie to return here

at perhaps a quarter of four, under that subpoena.

Why don't you come over there to Mr., Stoebling!
house? I will be glad to see you over there,

MISS SEGLIE: I am willing to go anywheres
to straighten it out. I don't care.

MR. GIULIANO: I move that the Committee meet '
at Mr. Stoebling's house at three o'clock,and that
further questioning of the witness be taken up at
three o'clock.

CHAIRMAN YOUNG: Being under subpoena,

I nov direct that you be at Mr. Stoebling?s house

at three o'clock.

(Following the taking of the above testimony
the Committee returned to the home of Mr. 8toebling
at 50 Glenwood Avenue, Gothic Towers, Jersey City,
New Jersey, at three o'clock p.m. Admittance to the
apartment of Mr. Stoebling could not be obtained, and

the Committee returned to its headquarters at Room

301 Essex County Court House, Newark, New Jersey.)
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After walting at the Court House in Newark
for the delivery of the required books, the books

not having been received by 5:20 p.m. the Committee

ad journed.
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THE SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE: The Chair assures
the gentléman from Middlesex that his comments will
be noted in the minutes.

MR, DeVOE: May I ask, Mr, Speaker, if the
stenographe£ is fhe official stenographer of this
Committee, under resolution number one?

THE SPEAKER: According to the resolution,
if you vbuld reﬁd it, you would find that the
Committee!s clerks and other attaches are appointed
by the Coomittee and not by the Speaker. Therefore,
if you are asking that Question it must bevanswered ‘
by the Chairman of the Committee.

MR, DeVOR: Mr. Speaker, will the gentleman
from Essex ;nswef a question?

THE SPEAKER: The gentleman from Essex will
submit to a Queétion.n

MR. DeVOE: The stenographer, I do not
believe, haé_been sworn. I want to know whether the
stenographer at the bar 1s the stenographer of
the Committee and whether he has been sworn.

MR. YOUNG: He has been sworn as our
stenographer,

MR. DeVOE: Mr., Speaker, I submit at this time

and I would like to move that we reconsider the vote

by which the report of this Special Committee, made
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tonight, was adopted.

I make this motion for the purpose of
stating the question to the house, that I did not
know at the time this Committee report was made
that the report--

THE SPEAKER: The Chair regrets the necessity
of recalling to the gentleman from Middlesex that he

said he would like to re-state his statement.

Instead of that he makes a motion and then before the
motion is acted upon he attempts to re-state his
statement. Which is it you want to do?

MR. DeVOE: I will re-state my statement in
connection ;1th my motion or I will re-state it and
make the motion afterwards.

THE SPEAKER: That will be better.

MR. DeVOE: Mr, Speaker and members, I wish
to state here on the record that the gentleman fram
Salem states here, in answer to my question, that

the Committee meeting of today under resolution number
one, which was partly responsible for the report
made tonight, was called without notice to him.

THE SPEAKER: That is the statement that you
wvanted ﬁb get oﬁ the record and which you made before?

MR. DeVOE: That is true.

THE SPEAKER: That far we are agreed. That
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statement will go into the records., Now you propose

to make a motion.

MR, DeVOE: I make a motion that the vote by
vhich this report was approved tonight be reconsidered
as 1t was not made as the official action of the

properly called Committee.

'll‘
f
4|
|
‘(“
1
z
.4‘

THE SPEAKER: All in favor of the adoption
of the reconsideration motion by the gentleman from
Middlesex will answer by saying aye; opposed, no.

(The noes do have it.)

MR. YOUNG (Essex): May I now have the
privilege of answering Mr, DeVoe? When we returned |
from Jersey City to Essex Géunty, thé members of the
Commiftee who returned with myself, Mrs. Sanford,

Mr, Palese and Mr. Featherer, we discussed at some
length whether we should issue warrants for the
arrest, or request the Speaker to issue warrants for
the arrest of Mr., Stoebling and Miss Seglie. Finally,
Mr,., Palese and Mr. Featherer, desiring to catch a
train vhich left at 5:15, the question was left with
me to discuss the matter with counsel. I arranged
for that interview this morning and this report and |
these resolutions are the product of that discussion. )

There 1s before the House a resolution which
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has Just been read. Perhaps the Clerk had better
read 1t over again. .

THE SPEAKER: Oh, no, that resolution is way
behind, Mr. MéCafter is now on the floor and the
Chair recognizes Mr, McCarter.,

MR. PESIN (of Hudson): Mr. Speaker, I would
like to raise é pointuof order,

THE SPEAKER: There is no point of order.

MR, PESIN: I am asking for a point of order,
Mr. Speaker. ol

THE SPEAKER: What is your point of order?

MR. PESIN: I should like to be straightened
out as to whether or not this 1s a session of the
House or whether it is a session of the Committee?

THE SPEAKER: Do you want me to tell you?

MR. PESIN: Yes.

THE SPEAKER: This is a legal session of the
House of Aséembiy.
| MR, PESIN: Then, under the circumstances,

I can't see thé probriety of this Committee acting
as a 8Special Committee, We have no resolution before

|
A |
us that the House meet in whole. Then I raise that |

point order. !

THE SPEAKER: There is no point of order raised.

|
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MR. PESIN: I raise that point of order.

THE SPEAKER: ~Your point of order 1s not well
taken, The Chalir declares you out of order. The
Chair will now listen to Mr, McCarter and nobodj else,
Mr, McCarter has the floor.

Ladies and gentlemen of the House, Mr, McCarter

MR. McCARTER: Mr. Speaker, and members of the
House of Assemblj: I come here before you as
senior counsel of this Committee., We have encountered
considerable inconvenience and a sefious condition
exists. I have read the testimony that was taken
on Saturday. I was not présent myself, and I am
astonished to find that under the apparent excuse of
Mr., Stoebling being sick he has apparently defied
the subpoena of the Committee and declined to permit
anybody to take these books,as the subpoena directed,
before the Committee, although he has at least three
times recently permitted the books to go without his
personal presence,

The report discloses that Mr, Stoebling,
although on Friday afternoon in conference with one

of the counsel of the Committee, had arranged
specifically the detalls of what books should be
delivered and what books should go, and as a matter of

‘convenlence to his office only ten districts of the
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First Ward of Jersey City should be sent with this
subpoena, he suddenly changes his mind and although
he had, as I said before, permitted those books to be
sent for thé recount, to be sent on the effort to have
a recount with reference to the primary, and on
another occasion, nevertheless, he suddenly makes up
his mind that "I want to be present when those books
go, and I am sick, and therefore they cannot go."
Now, the question that you have to take up tonight is
this: Is this House and is the Committee of this
House to be thus defied? The illness 1is a_mére
excuse, Time and again those books have gone bf
subpoena's direction without Mr. Stoebling going with |
them, and this sudden sensitiveness about the books
was implanted in his mind, I don't know by whom,
between Friday afternoon when the arrangement was
made between counsel of the Committee, Mr. Wiener,
and exactly how many books are to be taken ﬁnder the
subpoena, and how they shall go, and the whole plan
laid out.

Now, we have subpoenaed, and they are present,

as I understand, Miss Seglie and Mr. Dowden and Mr,

Pass, counsel for this gentleman and his right-hand

\
man., Miss Seglie is the assistant who has the keys ‘

for this place where these books are. They are underi
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a combination which she alone can elucidate and
explain, and she defiantly objects to the books being
taken away. Under what authority? Except the
authority of this man who changed his mind overnight.

The question now is, gentlemen of the House of
Assembly, are you to be defied? Is ‘your
Committee to act or isnt't 1t? Is Hudson County
stronger than the Lower House of Assembly of the
State of New Jerse&? It seems to me that the honor
of the state is at stake; It seems to me that we
might as well give up dbser%ance of the law, if
somebody who has books which this Committee has been
seeking to get now for two or three days, simply says,
"I am sick. I can't go and I won't let the books go
§1thout me." What are you going to do about it?

And the youﬁg lady wvho has heretofore opened the vault
and permitted the books to go, in answer to subpoena
says, "I obey my higher authority and now I will not
open tﬁe vaults,"

It seems éo me that this Committee should be
backed by the full strength of this House, and that
this Committee should be shown, by the adoption of a
resolution tonight that the House is supporting them.

This Miss Seglie, the assistant-- I don't care
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whether you call her deputy or what she 18-~ she 1is
the one who has always heretofore acted, and who has
acted three times recently, when we were endeavoring |
to get those books and couldn!t get them, yet she i
did get them vithout the slightest trouble, and now, |
all of a sudden, because the court's protection is
no longer here she says, "I will not let them go
and I will not unlock thaé combination."
You must remember that we were béfore the

Chief Justice of New Jersey in an effort to see these
books and get an order that they be préduced, and
one day they were produced, some of the very ones we
wanted, but before we could use them they were taken
back, and the order that we should have them was never
given. Is 1t possible that\these books, which are
part of the public records retained in a hall that is
paid for by the public, in the custody of a man who
is the servant of this House, shall be so guarded and
secluded that the Houserof Assembly of the State of
New Jersey cannot get them?

' You will recall the fact that after the

election, when it appeared that by a vote of some ;

forty-odd thousand the County of Hudson had elected
Governor Moore, ﬁnd you may remember that when the

suggestion of an investigation took place those high




authority in that county said, "We welcome an in-
vestigation. We welcome it. Céme on and make it,
if you dare. We defy you to show anything wrong."
Well, we dared to do it. We dared to take the .
trouble and the pains and tﬁe expense of starting
the ball rolling, and then we were met with X |
objections by counsel, and the court would not help
us to gét the books, and then we came to the
Legislature, and now every resource is put to and
adopted that this display of those books should be
had.

Forsooth, what i1s the matter with the books?
Why can't we see them? On one side are the genuine |
signatures of the voters, In the poll books are
the signatures actually made, and they are afraid
and ashamed to show them to us, and we therefore ask
your leave to examine these three witnesses here so
that you may see and hear exactly what they say.
Then we are going to ask the House to pass a resolution
éppropriate to the occasion and give this Committee |
further power in the premises.

MR. YOUNG: Miss Seglie, I believe to be
present. I beliéveAshe has an attorney present, Mr. i

Doherty. I should like to move that he be accorded f

the privileges of the floor for the purpose of re- ‘
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presenting her.

THE SPEAKER: If there is no objection he
will be granted the privilege of the floor for the
purpose of acting as personal attorney for Miss
Seglie.

MR. YOUNG: Mrs, Alice Fila or Alice Seglie
was subpoenaed before the bar of the House at nine
o'clock this evening, and I should like to know if
she 1s present.

MISS SEGLIE: Yes.

THE SPEAKER: I understand that you have done
that because she has élready refused to comply with
an authorized subpoena of a Coomittee of the House
of Assembly, and that she, therefore, is here to
prove why she should not be held in contempt of the
House of Assembly.

Miss Seglie, please take the chair,

MR. DeVOE: Mr, Speaker, at this time I would
like to have ‘again on the record the fact that I don't
quite understand, like Mr. Pesin of Hudson, the
procedure, The Committee seems to be functioning
in the body as a whole. Do I understand, Mr. Speaker,
that I am sitting here as a member of that Committee

to take part in these deliberations?

THE SPEAKER: If the gentleman from Middlesex :
p 1
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will read the rules of the House he will find that
there is nothing there that says, in a procedure of
this kind, that we must resolve ourselves into a
committee of the whole.

If there 1s anybody that wants or declares

the witness to appear here tonight 1in contempt, it
is the Speaker. Therefore, this is an auéhorized
meeting of the House of Assembly to find out definitely
whether the Hpuse of Assembly is as big as they
think they are, whether some people in this state
think they are bigger than the Legislature.

I should like to know whether the gentleman
from Middlesex desires to speak or not. Let me
say further, as long as I am in possession of this

gavel under the authority of this House, you can rest |

assured that T am going to do the dukies of wy
position as Speaker fearlessly and courageously, as
I promised to do when I took the oath of office.
MR. DeVOE: Mr, Speaker, did I understand you
to say fairly? |

THE SPEAKER: Yes, sir, positively, fairly, i
I
as falrly at least as the Democrats did last year when

& Democrat had this same gavel.

MR, DeVOE: That is very fair,
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THE SPEAKER: The gentleman from Middlesex,
please stick to the subject.

MR, DeVOE: That 1s what you are not doing.
Just a minute, I have the floor and you are not
sticking to the subject. I object to this witness
being called here and sworn here to give any testimony
of any kind because this House of Assembly has not
called her hefe.

THE SPEAKER: The chair rules that the young
lady is here strictly in accordance with the
Legislative authority. Therefore, we are going to
proceed with examining her.

I don't see why there can be any objection
in the House of Assembly in finding out whether they
are big or whether they are small.

MR. ROBERT H. DOHERTY (of Jersey City, New Jersey):

Mr, Speaker, may I, as counsel for Miss Seglie,

at this time interpose a legal objection on the
record to the fact that this subpoena, in the hands
of Alice Fila, who has been subpoenaed befofe this
Special Committee, that no mention 1s made in this
subpoena that she was to appear before the Assembly
as such. I therefore take it that the proceeding

L

in examining this witness not publicly-- ve want it |

public., We are perfectly willing that the Assembly




sit here as spectators but we do not feel that this

1nve§tigation, if it be an investigation, should be
held before the Assembly, because the very subpoena
itself indicates that this 1s returnable before this
Special Committee in the Assembly Chamber at nine

otclock, and I would like to interpose my objection

to show that fhis proceeding now is entirely illegal.

THE SPEAKER: The obJjection will be entered.
We will proceed.

The gentleman from Essex.

MR. YOUNG: The gentleman's objection can be
entered on the record. That is all that need be said. |

MR. McCARTER: Mr. Young has made a statement
that the objection is made. I would like to ask the’
‘gentleman wvho made the objection i1f he is the
assistant county counsel of Hudson County?

MR. DeVOEt I object to the question as
immaterial, as a member of the House.

MR. DOHERTY: I am.

THE SPEAKER: The question is decidedly
material.

MR. McCARTER: What 1is the answeré

MR, DOHERTY: Why 1s that relevant, Mr. Speaker?

THE SPEAKER: The objection is overruled by

the Chair.
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MR. McCARTER: Will you answer the question?

MR. DOHERTY: I am asking the Speaker. I ask
by what right-- .

THE SPEAKER: Do you recognize that I am
controlling it?

MR. DOHERTY: I do.

THE SPEAKER: All right, your objection to

the proper procedure appears to fall of its own weight.
MR, DOHERTY: May I, in answer to the question%-
THE SPEAKER: You just said that you objected |

to my procedure, and entered an objection. You then

‘turned around and say that you recognize me as being

|
|
|
in control of this particular procedure, that you ‘
recognize me as being able to--
|
i

MR. DOHERTY: For the purpose of the record-~

MR. DeVOE: I suggest that we all talk at
once at this time,

THE SPEAKER: The trouble is the tail wants

to wvag the dog here tonight but apparently it won't.

The question of Mr. McCarter i1s quite relevant,
and the Chair would like to hear your answer.

MR. DOHERTY: I am the Assistant County
Counsel of Hudson County, and I represent this young

lady because I represent the Hudson County Board of

Elections, and she is a clerk in that Board.
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THE SPEAKER: If you are ready, we will have
ﬁhe witness sworn.

MAJORITY LEADER WILENSKY: I move you that
while thié questioning 15 going on that no member
of the House be permitted to intervene. T

MR. DeVOE: I object to 1t. I am a member of thé
House. Mr. McCarter is not.

MR, WILENSKY: I amend that to say then,
until they are through and then any member can recall |

the witness.

MR. DeVOE: I object to it.

ALICE SEGLTIE FILA, |Dbeing duly sworn
according to law, testified as follows:
EXAMINATION BY MR. McCARTER:

Q@ Who besides you, Miss Seglie, knows the combination
of the vault in which the books,that have been spoken of so
much here, are kept? A. Mr. Stoebling.

Q No one else beside him and yourself? A. No, sir.

Q Did you recently open the safe and permit the books
tq be taken out in obedience to a subpoena to produce them

before the Chief Justice?

MR. DE VOE: I object to the question as not

material to this inquiry. I would like to have the

objection noted on the record. Whether or not the
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wvitness did anything in a prior proceeding has no
bearihg on this proceeding.

THE SPEAKER: If a few of the Advisory Masters |
around the Chair will leave the Speaker take care of

this by himself, he will do so. The objection is
overruled.
Q@ Will you answer the qQquestion, please?
A Yes, I will answer 1it. The only time I opened up the|
vault was during the process of the recount,

Q@ During the recount? A, Yes,

Q And the books were taken out there without Mr. Stoebligg

rgoing with them? A. As I understand-- ;
MR. DeVOE: Mr, McCarter, don't bulldoze the

witness.,

N (Laughter.)

THE SPEAKER: The Chair makes this observation:
unless you want the galleries cleared, please take
this seriously because I will clear that as well as I
did the floor., This is a serious business, \

Q@ And the books were taken out without Mr. Stoebling
going with them? A. Because during that time—-

@ Never mind because. Isn't that a fact?

A The books then were uﬁder the custody of the County

Board of Elections. [

Q Never mind. Will you answer the question, please?
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f Weren't the books taken out on the occasion that you have
just alluded to, without Mr. Stoebling going with them?
MR. DOHERTY: I object unless he is more
specific in what he ‘means by "out."™ Out of the
office, out of the building? |
MR. McCARTER: Out of the vault?
THE WITNESS: Oyt of the vault, yes.

‘Q Into another room? A. A room directly near the

Q Another room? A. Yes.

Q You were told on Friday night last that Mr. Stoebling
would not permit these books to go because he could not go
with them, weren't you?

A I wasn't told that, no.

Q You were not? A. No.

Q VWho told you not to open the vault? A, Mrs,
Stoebling.

Q Mrs., Stoebling? A. Yes.

Q By phone? A. Yes, sir.

Q From her house? A. I presume it was.

Q If she had not told you that you would have opened 1t?
|
A Yes, sir.

Q@ And you had learned that they were to be opened and

to be sent the next day to some place, hadn't you?

A No, sir.
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Q@ What? A. No, sir,

Q@ No? Very good. Is that the only time that the books
‘I were taken out without Mr, Stoebling?

A VWhat do you mean, "Is that the only time?"

Q fhe time that you ﬁave Just alluded to on‘that recount,
A Yes, sir,

Q@ The only time? A. Yes, sir.

Q@ Were they not taken out under the subpoena and pro-

‘duced before Chief Justice Brogan? A, At what time?

| Q@ VWell, during the past month or six weeks?

A Not that I know of, no.

Q@ Not that you know of? A. No, sir.

Q On the 28th of December? A. I don't remember the
{28th of December now.

‘ Q@ You know that they were sent out to the Chief Justice,
don't you? A, No, sir, I don't.

@ You know they went somewheres? A, For vhat purpose+
Q@ Never mind for what purpose. You know that the books
’;nf somevhere. A. I don't remember. No, sir, I don't
now that.

€@ You don't know that? Very good. Now, when had you

}irst heard that the subpoena had been served on Mr, Stoebling?

A I had not heard about it until Saturday afternoon.

Q@ Saturday afternoon? A. Yes, sir, about the subpoenﬁ.

Q Was any reason given you by Mr. Stoebling why those
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books should not be sent out in accordance with the subpoena?
A Mrs, Stoebling did not tell me that the books were
not to go out.
Q@ What did she tell you? A. 8he told me not to open
up the vault.

Q ©Not to open up the vault? Was any reason given?

A No, sir.

Q What? A. No, sir,

Q ©No reason given at all, or just not to open the vault?

A Yes, sir,

Q What d4id she say to you? A. She just said, "Don't
open up the vaulé."

Q@ Did you ask'for a reason? A, No, sir. I just take
my ordefs.

Q Is she your boss? A, No, sir, but Mr, Stoebling
is sick and through her I get my orders, !

Q@ Did she say that Mr. Stoebling said the books were
not to go out? A. B8he sald Mr. Stoebling said, "Don't
open the vault." A

Q TNow, you’appeared before the Committee and testified,
didn't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q@ And you refused to open the vault? A. I did.

Q Are you willing now to open the vault? A, No, sir.

@ You are not? A. No, sir.

Q You have been subpoenaed to produce the books before
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| the Conmittee, have you not? A. I have been subpoenaed

Q@ No, no, you have been subpoenaed before the Committee,

Jon Saturday last, to open the vault and produce the books?
A That is right.

Q And you declined to do it? A. Yes,

Q And you still decline to do 1t? A, Yes, sir,

Q Because Mr, Stoebling told you not to do so?

A Yes, sir,

Q That was on what time? A. That was Saturday

| morning.

| Q@ Otherwise you would have opened the vault?

A Yes, I would have, not for letting the books go out.
 ]% had other‘reasons Saturday morning.

Q@ I didn't ask yﬁu wvhat your reason was.

A Well, I am telling you.

Q@ She told you not to open the vault and you didn't
ido i1t? A. That is right.

Q@ And you won't do it now? A. No, sir. |
Q@ Not if you are commanded by the Speaker of the House
to do it? A. Not until I get my orders from Mr. Stoebling, |
fy superior. ‘
Q@ You think this House has no right to require those

|

books?

i
MR. DeVOE: Mr. Speaker, let us have some court+
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room parlance or regulation. Mr. McCarter stands
there and says to this young lady, "Do you think?"
And he knows and I know that neither one of is in-

terested in what she thinks.
from this yduﬁg lady.

vhat this girl thinks is entirely immaterial.
Q Did you recognize Mrs, Stoebling's voice?
A I certainly did, yes. |
Q@ You know her very well? A. Very well, yes.
Q You visit her at her house? A. Frequently.
Q So she told you not to open the vault and you said
"A11 right," and you haven't opened it yet to anybody?

A That 1s right.

probe, in the dispute between Mr., Stoebling and his
antagonists? A. During what probe?

Q Ziegener probe before Judge Brown? Didn't you
open 1t then? A. During the course of the recount?®

Q You heard what I said. A. I am asking you if it

vas during the course of the recount.

Q This is not a recount. We are speaking of an entirely

different thing. This is the proceeding before Judge Brown

jon the fight between Mr. Ziegener and Mr. Stoebling. Didn't

85,

- MR, McCARTER: It is very hard work to get it

MR. DOHERTY: I want to enter the same objection;

Q@ Didn't you open it when the books were in use at the
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you open them then? A. I don't remember that time,
You dontt remember that time? A. No, sir,

Could anybody else have opened them but you?

» o ©

No, sir.

Q How long has Mr. Stoebling been aické A, He has
been sick since-- he had been sick when the Zlegener re-
count started. The primery was in September. October I
believe it was.,

'Q Then, if the vault was open and the books produced
before Judge Brown you must have opened it&

MR. DOHERTY: I object to that as calling for
& conclusion of the witness,

Q Nobody could open it but you? A, No.

Q You say.that he was sick. He was sick abed, wasn't
he? A. He vas sick.

Q And sick abed during that contest? A, He had been
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